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This document is a ‘live’ document that will record all of the questions submitted during 
the open tendering period for the GLA’s “Digital Skills Training” ESF project, and the 
responses to the submitted questions. 
 
Please read the questions and responses prior to submitting a new question. Responses 
will not be provided for questions that are repeated. 
 
This document will be the only document published in relation to the “Digital Skills 
Training” ESF project, and will be updated and published each Friday until the period for 
Q&A comes to an end on 21 July 2017. The Prospectus indicates a deadline for weekly 
submissions of questions as 17:00 hours on the Wednesday of each week, and 
questions submitted by the deadline will be responded to in this publication. However, 
where a question is submitted after the deadline but prior to publication the GLA will 
endeavour to include a response, rather than waiting a full week. To confirm the 
reasoning for this; (i) the publication will be available to all applicants at the same time, 
so no organisation will be disadvantaged, and (ii) the questions will be answered at the 
earliest possible publication date in order to assist all applicants and give them the 
maximum amount of time to consider responses. If further clarification is required that 
prevents the GLA from providing a response by the Friday following a Wednesday 
submission, the GLA reserves the right to publish an updated version of this document 
prior to the next publication deadline. The final date for the submission of questions is 19 
July 2017. 
 
Individual questions will not be responded to directly, but will appear in this published 
document so that all potential applicants receive a response at the same time to ensure 
that no advantage is given to any one bidder. 
 
Questions will be printed in full, although the GLA reserves the right to amend wording to 
improve clarity if necessary, and to split questions which include more than one request 
into multiple questions. Questions will include a date on which they were submitted, but 
will be published in an anonymized format. 
 
Where questions relate specifically to the “Digital Talent” project, they will be published 
under that project heading. 
 
Where question are generic or can be considered as generic, they will be published 
under the “Generic Questions” heading.  
 
The GLA reserves the right to publish questions that are asked about a specific project, 
but which can be considered as generic, under the “Generic Questions” heading.  
 
You are strongly advised to read both the generic questions and answers and those for 
the project for which you are applying before you submit your application. 
 
Generic questions and answers will be republished in the Q&A document for any future 
opportunities funded via the GLA ESF 2014-2020 programme, although the GLA 
reserves the right to make amendments to responses if circumstances change or 
additional information is made available. 

 
Release 5. Uploaded on 21 July 2017 
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Generic Questions 
 
Generic questions 1 to 16 are replicated from those published during the recent GLA 
grant award Q&A periods. 

 
 

Q1. What is the minimum turnover for bidding as lead for the <project title> 
tender?  
(18 November 2016) 
 

A1. The GLA does not require a minimum turnover from organisations bidding 
as Lead Delivery Partners. The GLA’s Due Diligence process will look at a 
variety of areas, as described in the Prospectus, and they will collectively be 
considered prior to GLA Finance making a recommendation of whether to 
support an application. The GLA Finance recommendation will be risk based 
and may include suggested mitigations if risks are considered high but 
manageable. The GLA Finance recommendation will be considered 
alongside additional information requested within the application, and a 
decision will be made at moderation. Organisations should take a sensible 
approach when considering whether to apply as a Lead Delivery Partner, 
and should consider whether they have the financial stability and knowledge 
to manage a project of any particular value and complexity in terms of 
partnership. 

 
Q2. To aid greatly with preparing our responses could you possibly 

provide the approximate maximum character counts for each of the 
response boxes in Part C of the application form? 

 (24 November 2016) 
 

A2. No character limit has been published because the response boxes in Part 
C of the application form have been set up to be size-restricted so that all 
applicants have the same space for their response. If the allowable space is 
more than one page, please move your cursor to the next available box 
once one has been filled in order to continue with your answer. 

 
Q3. We are interested in becoming involved in the delivery of your 

<project>, but we feel we might not be successful if we submit a bid as 
a Lead Partner and we are therefore considering joining a partnership. 
Can you provide any information about the organisations that you 
know are bidding to become Leads? 
(25 November 2016) 

 

A3. Unfortunately the GLA will not know who intends to submit a bid as a Lead 
Delivery Partner until the deadline. However, we have put up an option for 
people to join our Mailing List on our website, and this asks whether people 
would like to be put on a Partnership Database. 

 
If you would like to access our Mailing List, please fill your details in here. 

 
If you would like to view the Partnership Database, please download it here. 

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/gla-co-financing-organisation
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/esf-partnership-database
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Q4. I have downloaded the Partnership Database from the ESF pages on 
the GLA website, but it is not clear whether an organisation wants to 
be a Lead Partner or a Sub-Partner. Can you let me know how I should 
find out? 
(25 November 2016) 

 

A4. The early version of the Mailing List included a Yes/No option for this 
question, but it has now been updated. We have written to the organisations 
on the Partnership Database to let them know that they can update this 
information, and we will continue to republish an updated version of the 
Partnership Database on our website on a regular basis. 

 
Q5. As part of Due Diligence bidders are required to provide financial 

regulations unless legally unable. Our finance department are 
uncomfortable about this as it is an internal document and feel our 
audited Annual Report should provide sufficient assurance, are there 
any alternatives to that particular document and will not providing it 
mean we fail the Due Diligence? 

 (25 November 2016) 
As a follow on to my Financial Regulations question, would our 
Procurement Policy suffice? 
(29 November 2016) 
 

A5. In order to aid the Due Diligence process and obtain a clear understanding 
of an organisation’s capacity, processes and risk regarding financial 
exposure, the GLA has requested a number of documents. The Prospectus 
allows a relaxation of the requested documentation provided there is a legal 
reason. In this instance we do not believe that there is a legal reason to 
withhold the documentation. Furthermore, it being an internal document 
gives us greater insight into the procedures and processes related to the 
financial areas of your business. Whilst we appreciate the offer to substitute 
the Financial Regulations documentation with your audited Annual Report 
and Procurement Policy, these documents will not provide the breadth of 
information that the Financial Regulations will provide. We therefore confirm 
that we require the documentation and that if you fail to supply it we reserve 
the right not to assess your application or consider it for an award of funding. 

 
The GLA will review the Due Diligence process and documentation 
requirements, and may amend this as future Specifications are published. 

 
Q6. Please can you confirm whether or not someone could be on the SFA 

ESF Youth Programme at the same time they are on the GLA ESF 
Programme.  Will there be the same opportunity to refer between 
Strands? 

 (25 November 2016) 
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A6. A participant may be on both the SFA and GLA ESF programmes at the 
same time, provided that the projects are delivering different outcomes or 
results. For example, if an activity identified during client assessment could 
be delivered via an SFA project, and would not be reported or claimed from 
both, the participant could access both streams of funding. Applicants 
should note however that care should be taken where the end result for the 
participant is the same on both programmes, as it would not be able to be 
reported to and claimed from both organisations, regardless of whether the 
activity was delivered by more than one organisation or not. 

 
Q7. The Payment Trigger Calculator asks how much additional funding 

bidders could absorb to deliver additional outcomes at the same unit 
price – is there an upper limit for funding available? 

 (1 December 2016) 
 
A7. The question in the Payment Trigger Calculator is not related to current 

budget availability, but is intended to verify the value of project that an 
organisation could accommodate if additional budget did become available 
and the GLA wished to invest additional funding into this project. 

 
Q8. We are looking at the <project> application, and would like to know in 

more detail how the scoring mechanism works in practice. 
We have already referred to the information in the Application Form, as 
well as in the Prospectus on ‘How GLA will score your application’ but 
we would like clarity on how the scoring of each section of the 
application is going to work. So for example what is the maximum and 
lowest score for a question with say 6% weighting or 20% weighting? 
I also assume the scoring will work in the same manner for the <other 
GLA ESF projects>. I look forward to your feedback. 
(8 December 2016) 
 

A8. The final section of the application (usually Part F) will indicate the values 
that each question will be scored from, (usually 0 to 3), and the percentage 
weighting for each question. Therefore, if a question is worth 6%, and score 
of 3 would mean that the application answer has contributed 6% to the 
overall score, with a 2 achieving 4%, a 1 achieving 2%, and a 0 achieving 
0%. The question weighting therefore indicates the overall importance of the 
question. 

 
Q9. Please could you confirm whether an apprenticeship can be claimed as 

an employment outcome for GLA ESF co-financed projects?  
(13 December 2016) 
 

A9. Participants who commence an apprenticeship will also have a contract of 
employment, and the preferred supplier will therefore be able to satisfy the 
evidence requirements for a claim for entry to employment for GLA ESF co-
financed projects. 
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Q10. We are currently considering a bid, but would prefer to engage with the 

programme as a subcontractor. I am aware that there is an ESF 
Partnership Database, but am not sure how to access it. Could you 
confirm this please? 

 (1 February 2017) 
 
A10. The link to access the Partnership Database is here and can be found in the 

response to Q3 above. The database is updated every week and the 
updated version is published on Friday of each week.  

 
Q11. Would a Young Person’s participation in this programme affect their 

entitlement to JSA or other out-of-work benefits in any way? 
(2 February 2017) 

 

A11. Applicants should note that although individuals in receipt of JSA or ESA are 
eligible for the Programme, they may be mandated onto Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP’s) Work Programme. This would result in 
participants being required to exit the project prior to completion and prior to 
results being achieved ,therefore meaning that the GLA would be unable to 
make further payments in relation to the mandated participant. However, at 
their discretion, Jobcentre Plus (JCP) advisors may be able to defer 
mandatory Work Programme entry for a period of up to 12 months to allow a 
client to engage with alternative provision, and the GLA therefore advises 
that if JSA or ESA clients are recruited, successful Applicants should liaise 
with the individual’s JCP advisor to confirm deferment at the earliest 
instance. 

 
Q12. If we submit an application, can you confirm when we will find out if we 

are successful (or not)? 
(3 February 2017) 

 

A12. The Prospectus confirms that, whether successful or not, all applicants will 
be notified at the same time, (within one week of a decision being made by 
the GLA). A table which indicates provisional dates for various milestones is 
included at the end of the Specification. 

 
Q13. In a previous answer you have indicated that there is no minimum 

turnover for organisations submitting a tender, but that the financial 
tests in the prospectus will be followed.  Are you able to provide more 
detail about what the thresholds are for pass/fail on the measures 
indicated in the prospectus so that we can make an assessment about 
whether we will meet these requirements? 
(15  February 2017) 

 
  

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/esf-partnership-database
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A13. The GLA Due Diligence process looks at a number of indices in order to 
determine whether they feel that there is sufficient risk appetite for us to 
make an investment. As each area reviewed impacts on all others, there are 
no thresholds that are set as either pass or fail. A generally poor score 
throughout could result in a recommendation that we do not invest, as could 
a good score throughout but with one area reviewed scoring particularly 
poorly. 

   
Q14. Is there a minimum number of hours per week that someone needs to 

be in employment or training for this to count as an outcome? 
(15 February 2017) 

 
A14. The Evidence Handbook confirms the minimum number of hours per week 

that someone needs to be in employment for this to count as an outcome. 
There is no minimum threshold for either education or training. 

 
Q15. Is there a minimum period of time that someone needs to have been 

out of education, employment or training before they are eligible for 
this programme? 
(15 February 2017) 

 
A15. The Specification confirms that participants must be either unemployed or 

inactive on entry to the project. Eligibility for the “Digital Skills Training” 
project also includes ‘At Risk’. Please refer to the Evidence Handbook for a 
definition. 

 
Q16. I'm writing with a query regarding the <Project Name> ESF Prospectus, 

we are considering submitting a bid as part of a <organisation status> 
consortium. As part of the due diligence process we have been 
requested to submit our Financial Regulations.  This document is for 
internal use only and contains potentially sensitive information that 
could leave us open to the risk of fraud if we allow our risk 
management processes and controls to be shared externally.  Please 
could you confirm if an abridged version of our Financial Regulations 
would be sufficient (removing sensitive information)?  
(21 February 2017) 

 
A16. Further to the response to Q5 (above), the GLA are prepared to accept a 

‘desensitised’ version of an organisation’s Financial Regulations, but 
applicants should ensure that the documentation provides sufficient 
information for the GLA to carry out their checks, and the GLA reserve the 
right to approach the applicant for additional information if it is required. 
However, the GLA would wish applicants to consider whether there is a 
need to submit a desensitised document, as the GLA would not share the 
document further and it would only be used internally for our review and 
checks. 
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Questions relating specifically to the “Digital Skills Training” project 
 

Q1a. There appears to be a problem with the link for downloading the 
application form document on the website, when you click the link it 
takes you to the specification rather than the application document, 
can you please repair the link or send me the application form directly;  

 (26 June 2017) 
 
Q1b. We have an interest in the Digital Skills Training grant that was 

published yesterday on the London.gov.uk website. However, the link 
to the Application Form does not seem to work – it brings up the 
specification document instead. 
(27 June 2017) 

 
A1. Thank you for notifying us of this issue with the link. The project 

documentation was published on the ESF Digital Talent page at 11:00am on 
26 June 2017, and the link was revised at 11:53am on 26 June 2017 so that 
the Application Form could be accessed. Documents on the (non-ESF) 
Digital Talent page were removed on 27 June 2017 and replaced with a link 
to the ESF Digital Talent page so that the document links only appear once. 
Please ensure that the documents are accessed from 
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-
financing-organisation/funding-opportunities/gla-es-0. If you do have 
continued difficulties accessing and of the documentation please contact us 
at the published email address, ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk. 

 
Q2. We have a question on eligibility for this fund. Given that your 

programme channels investment to progress those that we are 
working with into employment and/or education, I wonder if self-
employment is a consideration as an outcome? 

 (27 June 2017) 
 
A2. Progression into self-employment is an eligible outcome, as sustained self-

employment is an eligible result. Please review the evidence requirements 
for entry and sustained self-employment in the ‘Entry Into Employment’ and 
‘Sustained Employment For 26 Weeks’ sections of the published Evidence 
Handbook. 

 
Q3. Please can you provide fuller, more detailed information on the scoring 

and evaluation of the Application Form and pricing i.e. weightings for 
individual qualitative questions, full evaluation criteria, page length for 
each question, and whether the evaluation will be conducted 100% on 
the qualitative questions (on the proviso of successfully navigating the 
PQQ elements) with no evaluation on unit price proposed. None of this 
information is specifically provided in either the application form or the 
Prospectus. Further guidance would be welcome. 

 (29 June 2017) 
 
  

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/funding-opportunities/gla-es-0
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/funding-opportunities/gla-es-0
mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk
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A.3 Weightings for individual questions are shown on the final page of the 
published application form (page 61). Scores that scorers will apply are 
shown on page 60. Therefore, if an answer to a question is considered to 
demonstrate a reasonable understanding and address some of the GLA 
defined requirements (as defined in the question), the scorer will award a 2. 
If the question is worth 3%, the answer will then achieve a score of 2% 
towards the overall score that will be achieved following scoring. This score 
may be adjusted during moderation, or following interview. This information 
is provided on pages 8 and 9 of the published Prospectus. Box sizes in the 
application form are restricted, so if your answer can not be seen once 
entered, it will not be scored. This is confirmed on page 5 of the published 
application form. The weighting for questions that make up the potential 
100% score are, as stated, published on page 61 of the application form. 
Page 8 of the published Prospectus confirms that scorers will apply scores 
which will be moderated, and the maximum moderated score will be 100%. 
Information on page 9 of the published Prospectus confirms that the 
moderated score may be adjusted after interview. The questions in Section 
2 of the published Application Form address Value for Money. The 
specification requires some minimum outcomes and results, and applicants 
should decide how many outputs and outcomes are reasonable for the value 
that they are applying for, and justify these in their answers. The GLA will 
assess the volumes and the rational and apply what is considered by us to 
be an appropriate score against the weighed question. Clearly, higher 
volumes will adjust unit rates and increase Value for Money, but if the 
volumes appear unachievable, and the rationale behind the volumes is not 
explained sufficiently so as to be considered as sound, this will be reflected 
in the scores applied by scorers. The GLA want applications that propose 
realistic and achievable targets, so applicants should not consider that 
inflating targets to unachievable levels will help them to achieve a better 
score in their application. 

 
Q4. In the specification it is implied that the £2m fund should ensure 

coverage of all boroughs via up to 8 projects. Should we assume that a 
project covering say 4 boroughs should be costed for around an 
eighth of the total financial envelope or is it perfectly permissible for a 
project to be up to the maximum value of 500K irrespective of how 
many boroughs or proportion of the minimum volumes proposed. 
Clear guidance on this would be welcome to assess the viability of 
delivering the service. 

 (29 June 2017) 
 
A4. A project can apply for up to the maximum of £500,000 irrespective of how 

many boroughs it will operate within. It is expected that any proposed 
geographic area for the project will be accompanied with a strong rationale 
as to why this specific area has been targeted.   
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Q5. In the payment trigger in Sheet 1 it is assumed that a 500K project will 
make a 50K contribution to the external evaluation of the project giving 
the deliverer just 450K for delivery. Is this an error, and how should a 
provider cost this if they are proposing a smaller delivery project? 

 (29 June 2017) 
 
A5. Evaluation costs should not be included in the PTC, and we confirm that this 

is an error. The GLA will publish a second version of the PTC without 
evaluation costs. However, if applicants have already started to complete 
the PTC, we will also accept the original PTC with costs on the “1. Cost 
Delivering Project” tab totalling up to £500,000, and in this instance 
applicants may ignore the Red warning and the warning narrative in cell 
E45. 

 
Q6. To what extent will linked ‘bootcamp’ bids to the GLA and ‘Digital 

Skills’ (ESF) bids be considered where we believe value for money and 
supported progression can be achieved in terms of delivering training 
and employability skills? Are there any restrictions or guidelines 
around this we need to be aware of, in particular with outcomes?  

 
A6. Applications to either ‘Digital Skills Training – bootcamps’ or ‘Digital Skills 

Training (ESF)’ must be standalone applications. Each project must produce 
the desired outcomes and any complimentary planned activity must be 
clearly outlined in both applications to demonstrate the links. However, 
applications for both funding opportunities will be assessed separately and 
under different criteria, therefore an application to one opportunity must not 
be reliant on the other. There is no guarantee that both applications will be 
successful and this may have a negative impact if only one application is 
approved. 

 
Q7. What constitutes employability for 26 weeks post digital training? Is 

this a part time or full time employment contract, or would self-
employment be considered an outcome? 

 
A7. Information regard the ‘parameters’ of what can be counted as employment, 

what can be counted as sustained employment, and what evidence is 
required, can be found in the ‘Entry Into Employment’ and ‘Sustained 
Employment For 26 Weeks’ sections of the published Digital Skills Training 
Evidence Handbook. 

 
Q8. What constitutes employability in terms of sectoral roles? Would 

employability be considered in an embedded creative role (i.e. digital 
comms in a non-Creative business) or an employment role in a creative 
business that is not strictly a creative role (i.e. admin / accounting in a 
Video Games Studio) as an outcome?  
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A8. Employability in a sectoral role is considered to be for a role that would 
require digital, technology or digital creative skills and does not have to be 
within a digital business.  In this case, a digital Comms role in a non-creative 
business would qualify as all sectors of the economy need digital talent, but 
an admin role in a video games studio would not (unless the admin role was 
IT related). This report by the Tech Partnership includes some more 
examples of sectoral roles that require digital, technology and digital creative 
skills.  

 
Q9. Can you confirm what constitutes a sustained result? (Ref; 

specification Page 14. £3000 per sustained result.) 
 
A9. Results, as defined in the published Digital Skills Training Evidence 

Handbook, are Entry to Education, Training or Employment, and Sustained 
Education, Training or Employment. Sustained Results are only Sustained 
Education, Training or Employment, and are considered as the Primary 
Result, as indicated in the ‘Unit Rates’ tab of the published Payment Trigger 
Calculator. 

 
Q10.  Is the maximum spend per participant for ESF Digital Skills Training 

£1,666? Is there capital funding available for the ESF funded project 
(as there is with the GLA funded Bootcamps opportunity)? Does 
capital funding bolster the spend per participant? 

 (3 July 2017) 
 
A10. There is no maximum spend per participant identified, the £1,666 equates to 

the average value available to meet the minimum requirement for starters, 
but it is recognised that some participants will not continue to a sustained 
achievement, and the amount per individual will vary. We are looking for 
bids that can demonstrate value for money and the two funding streams 
(ESF Co-Financed and non-ESF solely GLA funded) ask for this to be 
demonstrated in different ways. 

  
The GLA funded projects are payed based on achievement of milestones, 
whereas the ESF Co-Funded project will be payed based on the 
achievement of outputs and results (participant achievements). The 
Payment Trigger Calculator for ESF funding helps you calculate your 
proposed results costs.  

  
The Capital Expenditure identified in the GLA funding stream is not intended 
to bolster participant spend – it should only be used for capital spend that 
supports project delivery but is not intended to be linked to participant 
outcomes. The results of capital funding will be assessed through the 
evaluation of the programme. We will open up an opportunity for successful 
ESF bidders to access capital funding when they have been assessed and 
appointed. Information regarding the application process for the non-ESF 
solely GLA funded projects can be found under “1. Digital Skills Training – 
Bootcamps” at https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-
economy/skills-and-training/developing-digital-talent-london. 
 

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/priorities_for_entry-level_digital_skills_needs_in_greater_london.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-economy/skills-and-training/developing-digital-talent-london
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and-economy/skills-and-training/developing-digital-talent-london
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Q11. What evidence is required to show that the content of the training is at 

Level 3? 
What evidence is required to show young people are at Level 3? 
(4 July 2017) 

 

A11. Training modules developed for the client group will require ratification by 
the digital labs process, which will assess whether the content is of Level 3 
equivalency and advise accordingly. Clearly, where units of Level 3 
qualifications that are intended to be delivered are already accredited, the 
digital lab process will not be required to give this confirmation. 

 
Training delivered at Level 3 (to a maximum of 15 credits) or Level 3 
equivalency is the intended aim for all participants engaged on the project, 
and at the time that the specification was developed the GLA had been 
informed that they would not be able to fund full qualifications utilising ESF 
funding. We have very recently been informed that when utilising ESF 
funding we can fund the delivery of full qualifications up to Level 2, but that 
we will be unable to fund full qualifications at Level 3 or above. Therefore, as 
a proportion of the cohort may require Level 2 training in order to ready them 
for the required Level 3 delivery, it is now acceptable for accredited Level 2 
qualifications to be delivered as part of the project activities for those 
participants who are assessed as requiring this initial training. The GLA 
does not expect that this will be to more than 25% of the participants, and 
applicants should confirm the anticipated proportion within their application 
form. As this is an additional requirement that may be missed by applicants, 
applicants who do omit this information will be contacted by email by the 
GLA following the receipt of applicants and requested to provide this 
information. 
 
During delivery you should indicate why a participant has commenced at 
Level 2, rather than Level 3, in the participants Bespoke Training Plan as 
part of the assessment of need that will be required to be carried out at the 
point when a participant enrols, and although there is no specific evidence 
requirement an indication would be the highest level of qualification that they 
have achieved at the point when they commence on the programme. 
 
Any required Level 2 training will need to be delivered from the budget that 
is currently available within the specification. 
 

Q12. Please can you clarify whether there is a problem with the current 
application form since at present when you write into it the text does 
now scroll down, instead it just overshoots the margins i.e. there 
seems to be a formatting issue 
(7 July 2017) 

 
A12. Please see the responses previously provided to Q2 in the Generic section, 

(Page 3), and Q3 in the ‘Digital Skills Training’ section, (Page 9). 
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Q13. In 2.2 there seems to be a requirement to specify the number of basic 
skills qualifications – it seems unlikely in the context of this 
programme that this will be an outcome given training is likely to be at 
level 3 (although it may be an appropriate outcome for someone who 
may be referred outside of the programme). Can you confirm that an 
applicant won’t be disadvantaged if they input zero for this outcome 
(7 July 2017) 

 
A13. The offer of Basic Skills qualifications is an ESF Programme requirement, 

rather than a ‘Digital Skills Training’ project requirement. It is possible that 
there may be a small number of participants who would enter the project 
with achievements to date that would require a Basic Skills test, and who 
may not then pass the assessment and would therefore benefit from Basic 
Skill training. However, the GLA do not expect there to be high volumes 
entered in this section, and as such have not offered this as a paid outcome. 
If no Basic Skills are intended to be offered, simply explain the rationale 
behind your proposed volumes, as requested in Q2.2 of the Application 
Form. 

 
Q14. Please can you clarify the font size requirement - in the application 

guidance it states Arial size 12, but in the Q&A release it states it 
should be size 10. 
(7 July 2017) 

 
A14. The current version of the Application Form is set to Arial 12 point within the 

greyed out text entry points within the text boxes. Unfortunately the 
information in the Q&A and Application appear to not have been updated. 
 

Q15. We are considering applying to the grant application titled ESF Digital 
Talent. We wanted to clarify if it is a requirement that we are a 
charitable status? Or if we are a Ltd company (by shares) positioned 
with a huge emphasis on a social mission (help underprivileged 
students aged 16-24 years old move into sustained employment, 
education or training) we are still able to apply? 
(10 July 2017) 
 

A15. There is no requirement for an organisation to be of charitable status. The 
application form asks applicants to confirm their organisational status. 
 

Q16a. We are intending to submit an application for the Digital Skills Training 
programme. Unfortunately, the application form provided on your 
website is difficult to use due to the text being hidden at the bottom of 
each field (as shown in the image below); as the document is locked 
there is no way of viewing the end of many of the questions. Do you 
have an alternative form that we can use please? 
(10 July 2017) 
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Q16b. Additionally, everything is double-spaced so the bottoms of the 
questions are not visible as shown, and responses are double-spaced 
which severely limits the amount of text which can be inputted. I 
opened the form in a different version of Word which enabled me to 
see the full questions, but the font changed and as the form is locked, 
I’m unable to change it back to the requested Arial 12 pt 

 (13 July 2017) 
 

 
 
Q16c. In the application form Section C a number of the question boxes have 

cut off the end of the last bullet point of the response requirements. 
Please can you issue an amended template ASAP. 
(13 July 2017) 

 

A16. We have reviewed the document and as far as we can see there are no 
instances where any text is obscured or where there is any double-spacing. 
The section sent as a demonstration looks as below in our application form; 

 

 
  

We think that this is either (i) because your computer does not have Arial 
point 12 as an available option, or (ii) that you do have Arial point 12 as an 
option on your computer, but that your default settings for Word (including 
double-spacing) are overriding our settings and showing the Application 
Form in a different, larger font. This appears to be corroborated if you 
opened the form in a different version of Word which enabled you to see the 
full questions. Please review your default settings. However, as stated in the 
response to Q14 above, the current version of the Application Form is set to 
Arial 12 point within the greyed out text entry points within the text boxes, so 
provided that the protection on the document is retained, your response will 
be in the correct font. However, if you cannot resolve this issue by amending 
your default setting, please contact us again by email at 
ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk. 

 

  

mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk
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Q17. Can the 'sustained' employment be young people, registering their 
own start-up and being a 'director' of their company? Or does it have 
to be embedded within an organisation etc.? 
(10 July 2017) 

 

A17. Please see the response previously provided to Q2 in the ‘Digital Skills 
Training’ section, (Page 8). 

 
Q18. The question text is truncated in some of the question boxes in Part C 

of the application form for example question 1.1, 1.3, 1.5 and 1.6 and 
the narrative question in Part D - identified by converting the document 
to a plain text file and it is unclear if other text is truncated. Could you 
correct these errors please and re-issue the application form? 
(12 July 2017) 

 
A18. The questions are intentionally truncated as text boxes cannot be extended 

beyond one page in length when they are size restricted. This is not an error 
with the application form. Please see the responses previously provided to 
Q2 in the Generic section, (Page 3), and Q3 in the ‘Digital Skills Training’ 
section, (Page 9). 

 
Q19. Please could you add my address to your mailing list for The Mayors 

Digital Talent Fund 
(12 July 2017) 

 
A19. The ESF email address is used for ESF funded projects only. If you would 

like your name added to the ESF Mailing List (which is not specifically 
related to the Digital Talent programme), you should complete the form at 
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-
financing-organisation/gla-co-financing-organisation. However, if you would 
like to be placed on the Mailing List specifically for the Digital Talent 
programme, please email digitaltalent@london.gov.uk. If you are a provider 
and would like to receive procurement information, please visit the website 
www.london.gov.uk/digitaltalent and submit your details via the ‘register your 
interest’ button.  

 
Q20. Sustained Targets – within the specification (page 15) it states the 

minimum number of sustained results for employment is 588 with no 
mention of any minimum sustained results for those that enter into 
education. Within the PTC it asks for the sustained results to be stated 
separately for education and for employment.  However within the 
application form (page 20) is combines these results stating ‘Sustained 
engagement in Employment, Education or Training for 26 weeks’. 
Therefore can you confirm the programme targets stated in the 
specification are either A) combined employment and education or B) 
solely employment, and if so what is the target for minimum sustained 
results for those that enter into education? 
(12 July 2017) 
 

  

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/gla-co-financing-organisation
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/gla-co-financing-organisation
mailto:digitaltalent@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/digitaltalent
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A20. The minimum target for Sustained Employment results for the suite of ESF 
Digital Skills Training projects is stated in the specification. No minimum 
target has been specified for Sustained Education. You should consider 
your anticipated targets so that your contribution assist the GLA to achieve 
at least the minimum Sustained Employment targets, and then confirm the 
volume of Sustained Education results that you will achieve considering the 
Entry to Education targets stated in the specification for the suite of ESF 
digital Skills Training projects. As both are paid at the same value, the 
figures should then be combined in the Payment Trigger Calculator. 

 
Q21. Due Diligence – Section B (page 17) point 6 – please can you clarify 

what sort of budget documentation is required as the PTC and section 
2.3 of the application form contains budget and expenditure 
breakdowns in detail? Our interpretation is that you require a granular 
project budget to show the allocation of funding within the recipient 
organisation compared to any delivery partners, is that correct? 
(12 July 2017) 

 
A21. The current version of the PTC now contains an optional section where 

project level line value annual budget allocations can be included. If this 
section is completed, the PTC will suffice. Alternatively, you may choose to 
provide other forms of documentation that you have used to establish a 
project level budget. 

 
Q22. Level of Training – the specification states that ‘Digital training 

opportunities designed for these cohorts must be at the equivalent of 
level 3 and above and can include units of accredited qualifications at 
and above NVQ Level 3, but cannot provide a full qualification’ and we 
have noted the answer in the published Q&As re: Level 2 delivery 
however the application form asks for the % of starts that achieve 
Basic Skills qualifications? Can you please clarify this further in terms 
of what is eligible to be delivered and if there is any min levels/targets 
for Basic Skills? 

 
A22. Please see the response to Q13 in the ‘Digital Skills Training’ section (page 

15). 
 
Q23. Is there a separate budget allocated by the GLA for participants on the 

project included in the £500,000 or is it a separate fee (similar to the 
other strand 2 bid application) 

 
A23. All project costs, including support costs for participants, for the suite of ESF 

Digital Skills Training projects must come from the maximum £500,000 
available. No other budget or separate fee exists for participants. 

 
Q24. If we bid for the full £500,000, is there a set number/ minimum number 

of people to go through the programme from November 2017- March 
2020? 
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A24. There is no set minimum number of people at a project level, but the 
specification indicates the minimum volumes of individuals at a ‘programme’ 
level. You should therefore consider the value you are bidding for and the 
characteristic of the cohort you intend enrol, and justify your volumes in your 
application. 

 
Q25. As the training programme for each participant is 26 weeks, how would 

the rest of their time in the 2 years (between 2017- 2020) be spent - in 
employment/on apprenticeship programmes? 

 
A25. Individual participants are not required to stay on the project for any specific 

length of time. The project has a maximum timespan of 29 months. 
 
Q26. While NEETs are on the project - are they still eligible to dole payments 

/ will they be receiving payment? 
 
A26. Applicants should note that, although individuals in receipt of Job Seekers 

Allowance (JSA) or Employment and Support Allowance (ESA) are eligible 
for the Programme, they may be mandated onto Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP’s) Work Programme. This would result in participants being 
required to exit this project prior to paid results being achieved. 
However, at their discretion, Jobcentre Plus (JCP) advisors may be able to 
defer mandatory Work Programme entry for a period of up to 12 months to 
allow a client to engage with alternative provision, and the GLA therefore 
advises that if JSA or ESA clients are recruited, successful Applicants 
should liaise with the individual’s JCP advisor to confirm deferment at the 
earliest instance. 

 
Q27. In order for funding to be distributed in a proportional manner, the GLA 

will be looked to award £3,000 per sustained result, if we successfully 
placed 1,200 through the programme that would be a total of 
£3,600,000 - however, when mentioning the available budget, it states 
£2,000,000 for 12000 participants (minimum). These numbers don't add 
up - please could you elaborate further on this point 
(12 July 2017) 

 
A27. The specification requires that a minimum of 1200 participants are 

supported on the programme, and that at least 588 achieve a sustained 
employment result (with a volume to be determined by the applicant who will 
achieve a sustained Education result). Successfully placing 1200 individuals 
does not necessarily equate to achieving a sustained result, and this 
calculation would assume that 100% of the participants who commence on 
the programme would progress to and sustained either employment or 
education. The £3000 is a rounded approximation of full programme cost 
divided by the anticipated volume of sustained results, not a value per 
individual who enrols. 
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Q28. In relation to the clarifications issued on 17 July (see Q16) in respect of 

questions being truncated in the application form, I am still unable to 
read the last bullet points of questions 1.1, 1.3, 1.5, and 1.6. , I can 
confirm that Arial is installed and that I'm using Word 2010. Due to 
editing restrictions enforced on the document there is no way to 
change the font. Can you please resolve this issue as a matter of 
urgency? (16 July 2017) 

 
A28.   Please find below the truncated questions 1.1, 1.3, 1.5, and 1.6 in full: 
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Page | 20  
 

 
 
Q29.  There appears to be an issue with text wrapping in the application 

form. Text does not wrap in the greyed out text entry points within the 
text boxes. This appears to be to do with the format in which you save 
the application form. The application form seems to be in Word 97-
2003 on the website. This issue is resolved when you save to a Word 
file in the newest version of Word but I am not sure this is compliant 
with the requirement to save in version of Word no later than 
2010.Please can this be looked into urgently. 
 

A29.  We have reviewed the template regarding the issue of text not wrapping 
correctly in the question response boxes. This appears to happen only if you 
press on one key across the page continuously as shown: 

 

 
 

However, if text is typed into the response section as normal (with words 
and spaces) it wraps correctly as shown:  
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If this response does not resolve this issue, please contact us again by 
email at ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk. 

 
Q30.  In relation to the response requirement 4.5 delivery plan – please can 

you advise whether the response requires key milestones/activities for 
our project implementation only or throughout delivery. 
(13 July 2017) 
 

A30. The response requires key milestones and activities to be included for the 
entirety of your project’s delivery. 

 
Q31. The excel workbook you have provided to complete the costing is 

protected which means we cannot move or copy sheets into another 
workbook and cannot import sheets into the template either. Can you 
please urgently send an unprotected version? 
(14 July 2017) 

 
A31. The PTC workbook is an important tendering document and it is not 

intended to be modified in any way, which is why the protection is applied to 
the structure. You can always copy and paste the contents into another 
document if required. 

 
Q32. I am completing the Payment Trigger Calculator V2 and when I type in 

the number of ethnic minorities commencing on the project there is an 
error as it shows as a percentage – i.e. 210 shows as 21000% (tab 3 
line 11). Will this be corrected in a new version of the PTC? (14 July 
2017) 

 
A32.   The PTC has been checked online and there is no error. The cells and 

formula are working correctly. Please contact the ESFProgramme2014-
20@london.gov.uk if you are still having issues completing the PTC.  

 
 
 

mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk
mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk
mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk


Page | 22  
 

Q33.   Please can you provide clarification in respect of the requirement in 
the application form Part B (IV) Other Documentation. In requirement 
13 you have asked the following 'have you provided the latest copies 
of appropriate Common Inspection Frameworks?'. We are not sure 
what this actually means since the Common Inspection Framework 
refers to the Ofsted framework for inspecting learning and skills. 
Please can you clarify what you are expecting to be provided here. (17 
July 2017) 

 
A33.  This is a requirement for any partners involved with your project that will be   

providing accredited training as part of delivery. Digital Skills Training is 
funding to help set up and provide new non-accredited training opportunities 
and so therefore, it would not be appropriate or necessary to provide the 
latest reports relating to common inspection frameworks. 

 
Q34.  Please advise the following; 
 

1. What is the minimum grant amount?  
 

2. Should all activity take place in London? Or can activities be located 
nationally or within Europe?  

 
3. Is a geographic or themed approach preferred? For instance a 
project running activities within a specific sector based in Westminster 
with a partner in Lambeth, should they accept referrals from solely this 
area or the whole area?  

 
4. For the sustained outcome is the 26 week period separate to the 
activity period or can the activity also count towards the 26 weeks? (18 
July 2017) 

 

A34. 1.There is no minimum amount that an organisation can apply for. 
Applicants are invited to submit a single proposal for up to a maximum of 
£500,000 in grant funding. 
2. All activity must take place within the boundaries of the Greater London 
Authority. 
3. Applicants are invited to provide a rationale as to how their project meets 
London’s labour market needs. There are no geographic restrictions as to 
where a project can accept referrals from, beyond the need for participants 
to reside within the boundaries of the Greater London Authority. 
4.The sustained educational, training or employments for 26 weeks’ 
outcomes are separate to the activity period. The activity period cannot 
count towards the sustained outcomes. 

 
Q35.   We have a query regarding the guidance on the delivery of training        

through the Digital Skills Training Programme.  
 

Section 5.35 of the of the Digital Skills Training Prospectus states: 
 

“Delivery of Accredited Training 
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Applicants who propose to deliver training will be subject to the 
OFSTED and Common Inspection Frameworks and will be required to 
provide copies of their most recent inspection reports with their 
application, alongside evidence of Centre Accreditation.” 

 
Could you confirm if the requirement for recent inspection reports and 
Centre Accreditation only applies to organisations looking to deliver 
accredited training or is this also applicable to organisations who are 
looking to deliver non-accredited training? (19 July 2017) 

 
A35.  Yes. The requirement for recent inspection reports are only for organisations 

looking to deliver accredited training. Digital Skills Training is funding to help 
set up and provide new non-accredited training opportunities and so 
therefore, it would not be appropriate or necessary to provide the latest 
reports relating to common inspection frameworks. 

 
Q36.   Please can you clarify your expectations in respect of Partnership         

Declarations - should these be scanned and in PDF rather than Word 
since   this would seem to be more natural. (19 July 2017) 

 
A36.  The signed participation declaration form should be used or the details 

should be used on letterhead. The signed form or letter should be scanned 
and submitted with the relevant full application form.   

 
Q.37  In partnership working, how will we classify any subcontractors?  
 

For example: X is a partner who is named in the application but X may 
hire specialist subcontractors to deliver certain training. Will they have 
to be named in the application? If so, how and where? These could be 
independent trainers who are self-employed, or some people we have 
in mind but not confirmed at this point. 
 
Please clarify. (19 July 2017) 

 
A.37  Please include all of the partners and specialist subcontractors in the 

partnership declaration forms. In the brief description section please specify 
what services they will be providing.   


